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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING (ARM) 
 

 
Notice is hereby given to the certificate holders of First IBL Modaraba(FIBLM) 
that Annual Review Meeting [ARM] of certificate holders will be held on 

Monday, December 9, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. at principal office of  
First IBL Modaraba, 4-L, Gulberg-III, Lahore to review the performance of 

First IBL Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
 

The certificate transfer Books of First IBL Modaraba will remain close from 
December 03, 2024 to December 09, 2024 (both days inclusive).   

        
The persons entitled to attend the meeting will be those certificate holders 

whose names are entered in the register of certificate holders at the close of 
business on December 02, 2024        

   
 
 

 
 

Company Secretary 

November 18, 2024 



 

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT  
For the year ended June 30, 2024 

 
Dear Valued Certificate Holders 

 
 
I am delighted to present the report on the Financial Year ending June 30, 2024, for 
First IBL Modaraba, which wouldn't have been possible without the unwavering 
dedication of my esteemed fellow Board Members and our exceptional team. 
 
Our commitment to realizing our vision of becoming the leading Modaraba in Pakistan 
remains steadfast, and we deeply appreciate the trust and confidence demonstrated 
by our valued certificate holders. 
 
Despite the significant challenges posed by ongoing geopolitical tensions—including 
the Russia-Ukraine conflict—domestic political uncertainties, elevated inflation, a 
bearish stock market, and the depreciation of the rupee, I am pleased to report that 
your Modaraba has navigated these turbulent conditions with resilience. As a result, it 
achieved a commendable pre-tax profit of Rs. 21.423 million, compared to Rs. 13.494 
million in the previous year, 2023. 
 
Throughout the fiscal year 2024, the Board's performance and effectiveness have been 
rigorously assessed and found to be satisfactory. This evaluation encompasses 
essential aspects such as our vision, mission, and values alignment, active engagement 
in strategic planning, policy formulation, and diligent monitoring of our business 
activities. 
 
I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude once more to my fellow Board Members 
for their tireless commitment, invaluable insights, and expertise. Their unwavering 
dedication has played a pivotal role in overseeing the activities of the Modaraba, and I 
look forward to our continued collaboration in the pursuit of our mission. 
 

 
_________________________ 
Arslan Khan Khakwani 
Chairman 
November 11, 2024 



Directors’ Report 
 

The Board of Directors of IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited [IBLMM], the 

Management Company of First IBL Modaraba [FIBLM], and takes great pleasure in 

presenting the Audited Financial Statements for First IBL Modaraba for the fiscal year 

ending on June 30, 2024, accompanied by the Auditors' Report 

Performance Review: 
Amid significant challenges such as ongoing geopolitical tensions, including the Russia-

Ukraine conflict, domestic political uncertainties, high inflation rates, a bearish stock 

market, and a depreciating rupee, I am pleased to report that your Modaraba has 

successfully navigated these turbulent conditions. As a result, it achieved a commendable 

pre-tax profit of Rs. 21.423 million, compared to Rs. 13.494 million in the preceding year. 

Musharakah segment was the major income generating source during the period under 

review which contributed 38% of the gross revenue. Despite of high inflationary rates, 

Modaraba managed to curtail its operating expenses during the year under review 

 
Major portfolio was invested in Musharakah and Ijarah segments which includes 

investment in micro finance domain at high profit rates.  

 

Attendance of board meetings: 
During the financial year 2023-24 the attendance of board meeting was as follows: 

 

Sr 
# 

Name of director 
No of 

meetings 

No. of 

meetings 
attended 

Leave or 
absence 

1 Mr. Ibrahim Hasan Murad 04 04 0 

2 Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani 04 04 0 

3 Mr. Salman Ahmad 04 04 0 

4 Ms. Faiza Jabeen 04 04 0 

4 Mr. Muhammad Ibrahim 

Qazi 

04 04 0 

 

Composition of Board of Directors: 
 

As of publication date of these financial statement, the total number of directors are as 
follows: 
 

Number of director Male Female Total 

Number of directors 04 1 05 

 
As of publication date of these financial statement, the board composition is as follows: 

 

Sr # Name of Director Type 

1 Mr. Ibrahim Hasan Murad Non-Executive 

2 Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani Non-Executive 

3 Mr. Salman Ahmad  Independent 

4 Ms. Faiza Jabeen Female Director 

5 Mr. Muhammad Ibrahim Qazi CEO/Executive Director 

 

 
 

 



Composition of Audit Committee: 
As of publication date of these financial statement, the composition of Audit Committee 
is as follows: 

 
Sr # Name of Director Type 

1 Mr. Salman Ahmad  Chairman 

2 Mr. Ibrahim Hasan Murad Member 

3 Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani Member 

 
 

Composition of HR&R Committee: 
As of publication date of these financial statement, the composition of HR&R Committee 
is as follows: 
 

Sr # Name of Director Type 

1 Mr. Salman Ahmad  Chairman 

2 Mr. Ibrahim Hasan Murad Member 

3 Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani Member 

 

Operating data for six years: 
The operating data for six (06) years is annexed to this report. 
 

Pattern of certificate holding: 
The detailed pattern of certificate holding as required under the Code of Conduct is 
annexed to this report. 

 
There has been no trading in the certificates of Modaraba by any of its Directors, CEO, 

CFO, Company Secretary or their spouses and minor children unless specified in the 
financial statements. 

 
Stock Market Review: 
The Pakistan Stock Market experienced a year marked by both challenges and recovery 
trends during 2023-2024. The market faced pressures from ongoing economic concerns, 

including high inflation rates, currency depreciation, and political instability, but it also 
saw periods of resilience and investor confidence, particularly as the government 
implemented reforms and secured international support. Sectors such as technology, 

energy, and banking showed resilience, with technology stocks benefiting from increased 
digitalization trends, and energy stocks gaining from higher global oil prices. While foreign 

investor interest remained cautious, an improvement in Pakistan’s economic outlook and 
structural reforms helped attract some international investments, particularly toward the 
latter half of 2024. The Pakistan Stock Market in 2023-2024 faced significant economic 

and political hurdles but demonstrated resilience and gradual recovery as government 
reforms and international support efforts took effect, stabilizing market sentiment and 

paving the way for potential growth. 

 

Economic Review: 
Pakistan's economy in 2023-2024 was shaped by both internal and external pressures, as 

well as gradual recovery efforts driven by government reforms and international 

assistance. The period was marked by macroeconomic challenges, including high inflation, 

currency depreciation, and a stringent fiscal environment. Despite these headwinds, policy 

reforms and international aid provided some stability and hope for medium-term recovery. 

Inflation remained a significant concern due to high global commodity prices, elevated 

food and energy costs, and the Pakistani rupee's depreciation. The State Bank of Pakistan 

(SBP) maintained high interest rates to curb inflation, impacting borrowing costs and 



investment growth across various sectors. The Pakistani rupee saw considerable 

depreciation against major currencies, exacerbated by declining foreign reserves and 

trade imbalances. The currency depreciation contributed to inflationary pressures but saw 

some stabilization toward the end of the period due to government measures and IMF 

support. 

Pakistan’s government secured an Extended Fund Facility (EFF) arrangement with the 

International Monetary Fund (IMF), leading to significant fiscal reforms. Measures included 

improved tax collection, reduction in subsidies, and tightening of the fiscal deficit, which 

helped restore some investor confidence and strengthen macroeconomic indicators. 

Pakistan faced a persistent trade deficit due to high import costs and limited export 

growth, particularly in the early part of the year. 

However, the government implemented import restrictions and incentivized exports to 

control the current account deficit, resulting in a slight improvement by mid-2024. While 

the sector struggled due to adverse weather conditions and input shortages, government 

initiatives provided some relief. The sector's performance is crucial for employment and 

GDP contribution. The industrial sector, particularly manufacturing, faced challenges from 

high input costs and reduced domestic demand due to inflation. However, certain sub-

sectors, such as textiles and pharmaceuticals, benefited from increased exports and 

government incentives. The services sector, especially digital services, showed resilience 

and saw growth due to rising digitalization trends and increased demand for online 

services. Although foreign direct investment (FDI) remained subdued, improvements in 

the macroeconomic environment and the IMF-backed reform agenda attracted some 

international interest toward the end of the period, particularly in energy, infrastructure, 

and technology sectors. The high inflationary environment and reduced economic growth 

led to declining real incomes and higher unemployment, impacting overall living 

standards. Social protection programs were implemented, but challenges remained in 

providing adequate support to vulnerable populations.  The government’s commitment to 

fiscal and structural reforms, alongside IMF support, set a path for stabilization and 

gradual recovery. While challenges persist, the foundations laid during this period could 

enhance economic resilience, boost investor confidence, and open new avenues for growth 

in Pakistan’s economy. 

Internal Financial Control 
Your Modaraba's leadership is committed to upholding strong corporate governance 

principles, which are upheld through a clearly articulated system of checks and balances. 

The Board of Directors has successfully put in place a robust internal control system that 

is diligently enforced throughout the organization.  

Social and Environmental Responsibility 
First IBL Modaraba (FIBLM) is driven by a strong commitment to serving the community 
with unwavering professionalism and enthusiasm. Our focus has always been on several 

key areas to foster a better environment and promote sustainability. Our primary 
corporate objective is the establishment of robust internal controls. 
 

At FIBLM, we are dedicated to upholding sound ethical practices in all our operations. We 
firmly believe in the Risk & Reward concept for our staff members. Furthermore, our 

employees actively engage in social community projects, serving as catalysts for positive 
corporate contributions. 
 

We actively encourage our staff to minimize unnecessary resource wastage, including 
energy consumption and paper usage. FIBLM is deeply committed to fostering equal 



employment opportunities, ensuring that gender and disability discrimination have no 
place in our organization. 

 
To safeguard the interests of our valued customers, FIBLM regularly addresses their 

concerns through feedback mechanisms and frequent visits. We firmly believe in 
harnessing the talents of every individual, as they can greatly benefit our institution. 
 

Within our comprehensive HR policy, FIBLM provides health insurance/takaful coverage 
for our staff through renowned insurance/takaful companies. The health and safety of our 

employees are paramount concerns for our management. 
 
We continually motivate our staff members to actively participate in activities that bring 

tangible benefits to both individuals and the organization as a whole. 
 

Future Outlook: 
Keeping in view the flood aftershocks, low buying power in the country, high inflation, 

high interest rates and political uncertainty in the country, the management is taking very 
calculated steps so that the profitability can be increased/ maintained.  

 

Auditors: 
The present auditors M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhry & Co Chartered Accountant, being due 

for retirement.  

Acknowledgement: 
The Board remains thankful to Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Registrar 

Modaraba, State Bank of Pakistan, and NBFI & Modaraba Association of Pakistan for 

providing us their usual support and guidance.  

 

The Board appreciates and pays gratitude to the certificate holders and customers for 

entrusting their confidence on us and we assure them to maintain adequate internal 

controls, providing personalized services and also an ideal environment of good corporate 

governance in all areas of the activities. 

Finally, the Board appreciates the dedication and hard work put in by the management 

and all staff members of First IBL Modaraba. 

For & On behalf of the Board 

 

 
______________________ 
Muhammad Ibrahim Qazi 

Chief Executive  
Dated November 11, 2024 









Year Ended June 30. 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 23.50         32.05         44.16         52.11         13.60       82.10       
Ijarah rental receivables 0.44           1.30           1.24           0.13           1.21         0.22         
Advances, prepayments & other receivables 9.21           13.18         8.53           6.61           6.33         4.33         
Short term investments 5.93           2.90           3.83           4.74           2.77         1.31         
Short term Musharakah receivables -             -             8.00           0.60           27.50       13.55       
Current portion of Musharakah receivables 65.06         50.71         27.24         53.24         54.41       29.89       
Current portion of Murabahah receivables 0.50           -             -             -             -          -          
Total Current Assets 104.64 100.13 92.99 117.43 105.83 131.41

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Long term Musharakah receivables 1.89           20.18         42.63         26.85         25.84       25.55       
Long term advances and deposits 2.62           2.62           2.62           2.62           0.02         0.02         
Investment Property 72.08         67.08         62.08         57.08         52.08       47.08       
Fixed assets under Ijarah arrangements 40.13         36.85         26.97         6.63           23.75       18.51       
Fixed assets under own use 2.85           3.35           2.41           1.45           0.79         0.24         
Intangible assets -             -             -          -          
Total Non-Current Assets 119.58      130.08      136.71      94.64        102.49   91.40     
Total Assets 224.22 230.21 229.70 212.06 208.32 222.81

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors, accrued & other liabilities 1.06           1.77           1.37           0.83           0.91         5.80         
Short term borrowing -             -             -             -             -          -          
Musharakah profit payable 1.43           1.43           1.43           -             -          -          
Musharakah finance 0.70           0.70           0.70           0.70           0.70         0.70         
Current portion of non current liabilities 11.11         14.37         18.89         5.83           2.53         4.25         
Provision for taxation -             -             -             -             -          -          
Unclaimed profit distribution 10.48         10.48         10.67         10.88         10.83       10.83       
Total  current Liabilities 24.79        28.76        33.06        18.24        14.97     21.59     

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Long term security deposits 10.16         10.01         3.67           0.04           3.35         2.08         
Deferred Tax -             -             -             -            -         0.36         
Total  non current Liabilities 10.16        10.01        3.67          0.04          3.35        2.44        

EQUITY
Issued, subscribed & paid up capital 216.88       216.88       216.88       216.88       216.88     216.88     
Reserves 43.07         44.01         44.81         45.39         45.39       47.40       
Revenue Reserve and Unappropriated profit (75.98)        (72.08)        (72.30)        (72.85)        (74.82)      (66.81)      
Modaraba certificate deposit money 
Total Equity 183.96       188.81       189.39       189.42       187.45     197.46     
Un realized gain on revaluation on investment 5.32           2.64           3.59           4.37           2.55         1.34         

224.22      230.21      229.70      212.06      208.31   222.81   

(Rs in Million)

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL SUMMARY                                                                                                                  
BALANCE SHEET



Year Ended June 30. 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

INCOME
Income from Ijarah 20.23      9.55        7.70        4.00        6.56        11.57      
Profit on Murabahah investments 0.06        0.01        -          -          -          -          
profit on Musharakah investments 6.71        8.47        9.38        10.93      12.48      12.74      
Sub-total 27.00     18.03     17.08     14.93     19.04     24.31     

OTHER INCOME
income from investment property 7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        
Profit on deposits 0.14        0.74        1.70        1.19        1.71        3.89        
Income from short term investments -          -          0.05        0.13        -          -          
Dividend Income 0.05        0.04        0.00        
Reversal of provision against non performing Musharakah -          8.63        -          -          0.23        3.17        
Reversal of Musharakah profit held in suspense account -          -          0.18        0.20        -          -          
balances written back -          -          -          -          -          -          
Other income 1.05        1.77        0.87        0.27        0.26        0.62        
Sub-total 8.69        18.64      10.29      9.33        9.73        15.17      
Total Income 35.69     36.67     27.37     24.26     28.77     39.48     

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses 21.19      17.82      16.45      16.51      16.18      14.88      
Balances written off -          -          -          -          5.26        -          
Depreciation on assets under Ijarah 13.63      12.80      6.41        3.28        5.41        9.24        
Provision and suspension of doubtful Musharakah receivable -          -          -          -          2.81        
Other operating expenses 0.82        0.83        0.02        1.07        0.15        0.04        
Total Expenses 35.64     31.44     22.88     20.86     29.80     24.15     
Profit/ (loss) before Management Fee 0.05        5.23        4.49        3.40        (1.03)       15.34      
Management Fee 0.00        0.52        0.44        0.34        -          (1.53)       
Provision for WWF -          -          -          0.14        -          (0.31)       
Taxation -          -          -          -          0.94        3.49        
Net Profit 0.04       4.70       4.04       2.91       (1.97)     10.01     

(Rs in Million)

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL SUMMARY                                                                                                                  
PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY



 

 

FIRST IBL MODARABA 
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES 

 (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the 
following manner: - 

 
1. The total number of directors are 5* as per the following: - 

 

   a. Male: 4 
   b. Female: 1 
 

* The requirement of minimum 7 directors do not apply to Modaraba 

Management Company being Private Limited Company. 
 

Further, Election of Directors was due on May 30, 2023. The process of 
election of Directors shall be in initiated soon. 
 

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: 
 

Category Names 

Independent Director Mr. Salman Ahmad 

Executive Director Mr. Muhammad Ibrahim Qazi (CEO) 

Non-Executive Director Mr. Ibrahim Hasan Murad 
Mr. Arslan Khan Khakwani (Chairman)  

Ms. Faiza Jabeen 

Female Director Ms. Faiza Jabeen 

 

 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on 

more than seven listed companies, including this company.  
 

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that 
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the 

company along with its supporting policies and procedures; 
 

5. The Board has developed a vision/ mission statement, overall corporate 

strategy and significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured 
that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their 

date of approval or updating is maintained by the company; 
 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on 

relevant matters have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as 
empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations; 

 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his 

absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has 

complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency*, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board; 

 
*The Board did not hold its meeting during the 1st and 3rd quarter of financial 
year, due to non-availability of directors. 

 



 

 

8. The Board does not have a formal policy and transparent procedures for 
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations 

as the remuneration of directors is being paid by the management 
company; 
 

9. One director out of five directors is exempted from Director’s Training by 

virtue of his requisite qualification and experience of serving on the Board 
of listed company; 

 
10.The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company 

secretary and head of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms 

and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of 
the Regulations; 

 
11.Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial 

statements before approval of the Board; 

 
12.The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

 
a) Audit Committee  

 

Mr. Salman Ahmad   Chairman  

Mr. Ibrahim Hasan Murad  Member 
Ms. Faiza Jabeen   Member 
 

 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee 
 

Mr. Salman Ahmad   Chairman  
Mr. Ibrahim Hasan Murad  Member 

Ms. Faiza Jabeen   Member 
 

 
13.The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, 

documented and advised to the committee for compliance; 
 

14.The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee 

were as per following:- 
 

a) Audit Committee    4* 
b) HR & Remuneration Committee  1 
 

 *Audit Committee of the Company hold its meeting during the 1st and 3rd   
Quarter of financial year, due to non-availability of directors. 

 
 

15.The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered 

suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with 
the policies and procedures of the company; 
 

16.The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been 
given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit 
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in 
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines 

on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are 



 

 

not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of 

internal audit, company secretary or director of the company; 
 

17.The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been 
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these 
Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 

confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; 
 

18.We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 
36 of the Regulations have been complied with except 27 that the Company 
did not hold its meeting in 1st and 3rd quarter of the financial year; 

 
19.Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 

3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36: 
 

Sr.# Reg. Ref. Description Explanation  

1 SOC 07 & 
Sec 176 of 

the 

Companies 
Act, 2017 

The Board shall meet at least 
once in each quarter of year. 

The Board did not 
meet in the 1st and 
3rd quarter of the 

financial year. 

2 19 By June 30, 2022, all 

directors shall acquire 

certification under director 

training program. 

Four Out of five 
directors have not 

acquired the 
prescribed DTP 
certification. 

 
 

 

 
______________________ 

Muhammad Ibrahim Qazi 
Chief Executive 
November 11, 2024 

















SHARI’AH ADVISOR’S REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED June 30, 2024 

 

I have conducted the Shari’ah review of First IBL Modaraba managed by IBL Modaraba 

Management (Pvt.) Ltd. for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with requirement 

of the Shari’a Compliance and Shari’ah Audit Mechanism for Modaraba. 

 I acknowledge and certify that as Sharia Advisor of the Modaraba, the financial 

arrangements, contracts and transactions entered into by the company with its customers, 

stake holders and participants are in compliance with the requirements of Sharia rules and 

principles.  

During the review I have verified the following in compliance with Shariah mechanism:  

 The transactions of Musharakah and Ijarah were reviewed on random selection basis. 

 Declarations, description of assets, relevant purchase invoices, sequence and order 

of the documents and time difference between purchases and declaration where 

applicable were reviewed to obviate the possibility of fictitious transactions.  

 Sharia Compliance Checklists (SCC) of transactions was also reviewed on random 

basis.  

 During the year, credit approvals, customer-specific transaction process flows, text 

of documents and security documents were reviewed to ensure Shariah compliance 

while offering financing products to the customers.  

 Random physical inspections and concrete measures were taken to verify the 

purchase evidences and invoices of financing transactions, thus further improving the 

quality of internal controls.  

 Other related documents and procedures followed by different functional areas were 

found proper.  

 During the year onsite training has been given to the staff. 

 There is no receipt of charity during the financial year accordingly no amount was 

credited into charity account.  

Conclusion  

In this context of detailed Shari’ah review carried by the undersigned for the Year ended 

June 30, 2024, transactions during the period executed by FIBLM were found satisfactory as 

required by Shari’ah Audit Mechanism. 

 

 



2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank balances 6 106,248,945       82,104,089         
Short term investments 7 1,918,105          1,306,793          
Ijarah rentals receivable 8 484,497             224,868             
Short term Musharakah receivables 9 44,000,000         13,553,483         
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 10 6,788,050          2,469,641          
Advance income tax 2,536,504          1,861,395          
Current portion of long term Musharakah receivables 11 20,557,040         29,890,654         

182,533,141       131,410,923       
Non-Current Assets

Long term Musharakah receivables 11 4,748,314          25,548,004         
Long term deposits 20,500               20,500               
Deferred tax asset 17 2,027,989          -                    
Investment property 12 42,083,494         47,083,522         
Fixed assets under ijarah arrangements 13 10,323,877         18,512,742         
Fixed assets under own use 14 79,162               238,699             

59,283,336         91,403,467         

Total Assets 241,816,477       222,814,390       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 15 4,654,635          2,854,911          
Musharakah finances payable 700,000             700,000             
Current portion of long term security deposits 16 3,205,350          4,253,911          
Income tax payable 11,140,150         2,942,382          
Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598         10,834,598         

30,534,733         21,585,802         
Non-Current Liabilities

Long term security deposits 16 621,800             2,075,000          
Deferred tax liability 17 -                    361,132             

621,800             2,436,132          

Total Liabilities 31,156,533         24,021,934         

NET ASSETS 210,659,944       198,792,456       

REPRESENTED BY:

Certificate capital 18 216,875,000       216,875,000       
Statutory reserves 19 49,686,655         47,395,690         
Accumulated loss (57,650,506)       (66,814,365)       

208,911,149       197,456,325       

Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments - Fair value through OCI 20 1,748,795          1,336,131          

210,659,944       198,792,456       

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21 -                    -                    

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER                            DIRECTOR                            DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

FIRST IBL MODARABA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2024



\

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

INCOME FROM OPERATION

Income from ijarah rentals 15,566,532     11,570,394     
Profit on Musharakah investments 19,609,704     12,741,801     

35,176,236     24,312,195     
OTHER INCOME

Income from investment property 7,495,440       7,495,440       
Profit on deposits 9,217,038       3,889,600       
Dividend income 3,749             262                
Other income 22 146,220          618,804          
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of investments 61,094           -                 

16,923,541     12,004,106     

Reversal of suspension of Musharakah receivables -                 3,167,273       

TOTAL INCOME 52,099,777     39,483,574     

EXPENSES

Operating expenses 23 (16,518,850)    (14,877,173)    
Depreciation on assets under ijarah 13 (11,231,011)    (9,235,969)      
Unrealized loss on re-measurement of investments -                 (35,284)          

(27,749,861)    (24,148,426)    

PROFIT BEFORE MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S FEE 24,349,916     15,335,148     

Modaraba Company's management fee 24 (2,434,992)      (1,533,515)      
Provision for Worker's Welfare Fund (490,655)        (306,703)        

PROFIT BEFORE LEVY AND TAXATION 21,424,269     13,494,930     

Levy / final taxation (563)               (39)                 

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 21,423,706     13,494,891     

Taxation 25
- Prior year (1,366,407)      74,005           
- Current period (11,129,151)    (2,985,912)      
- Deferred tax 2,526,676       (575,794)        

(9,968,882)      (3,487,701)      

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11,454,824     10,007,190     

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

    Unrealized gain / (loss) on re-measurement of investments through OCI 550,219          (1,431,083)      
    Related deferred taxation (137,555)        214,662          

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss -                 -                 

Other comprehensive gain / (loss) for the year 412,664          (1,216,421)      

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 11,867,488     8,790,769       

26 0.53               0.46               

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER                  DIRECTOR                                  DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

(Modaraba Management Company)

EARNINGS PER MODARABA CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

FIRST IBL MODARABA
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

For IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited



2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (Used in) / generated from  operations 27 (1,941,026)       46,665,816       

Increase in non-current assets:
 - Long term Musharakah 11 30,133,304       24,812,375       
Purchase of fixed assets under ijarah arrangements 13 (6,977,200)       (7,539,600)       
Proceeds from disposal of assets on terminating ijarah 3,937,321        2,893,291        
Management fee paid 15 (1,533,515)       (339,994)          
Income taxes paid 25 (4,972,899)       (3,455,525)       

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 18,645,985       63,036,363       

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets under own use -                  441,200           
Dividend income received 4,668               2,762               
Profit received on bank deposits 7,995,964        3,526,280        
Customers' security deposits - net 16 (2,501,761)       1,497,816        

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities 5,498,871        5,468,058        

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 27.1 -                  -                  

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,144,856       68,504,421       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 82,104,089       13,599,668       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 106,248,945     82,104,089       

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

FIRST IBL MODARABA

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024



Balance as at June 30, 2022 216,875,000 45,394,252 (74,820,117) 187,449,135

Comprehensive Income for the Year

Net profit for the year - - 10,007,190 10,007,190
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - 10,007,190 10,007,190

Transfer to statutory reserves (Note 19) 2,001,438 (2,001,438) -

Balance as at June 30, 2023 216,875,000 47,395,690 (66,814,365) 197,456,325

Comprehensive Income for the year

Net profit for the year - - 11,454,824 11,454,824
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - 11,454,824 11,454,824

Transfer to statutory reserves (Note 19) - 2,290,965 (2,290,965) -

Balance as at June 30, 2024 216,875,000 49,686,655 (57,650,506) 208,911,149

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR       CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

Total Equity

FIRST IBL MODARABA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Particulars
Certificate 

Capital

Rupees

Statutory 
Reserve

Accumulated 
Loss

Reserves



Note 1
Legal Status and Nature of Business

Note 2
Basis of Preparation

2.1    Statement of compliance

-

-

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Note 3
Key Estimates and Judgments

3.1    Useful lives, pattern of flow of economic benefits and impairment

In the process of applying the Modaraba’s accounting policies, the management has made the following estimates and judgments which
are significant to the financial statements:

The Modaraba’s management determines the useful lives and related depreciation charge, the residual values and impairment of
its fixed assets and investment property on regular basis as disclosed in note 4.3, 4.4, 12, 13 & 14 to the financial statements.
These are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the assets and the residual values, the same is changed to reflect the changed pattern.
Such change is accounted for as change in accounting estimate in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

FIRST IBL MODARABA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

First IBL Modaraba ("the Modaraba") is a multi purpose, perpetual and multi dimensional Modaraba formed under the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and rules framed thereunder, having its registered office at Office No.
4-L, Main Ferozepur Road, Gulberg 3, Lahore. The Modaraba is managed by IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited (Modaraba
Management Company) incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Act, 2017.

The Modaraba is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. It commenced its operations on October 19, 1989 and is currently engaged
in various Islamic modes of financing and operations including Ijarah, Musharakah and Murabaha arrangements. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

Wherever the requirements of the approved accounting standards differ from the relevant laws, the relevant laws have been
followed.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS) and Islamic Financial Accounting
Standards (IFAS) as are notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017;

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Flotation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and Modaraba Regulations, 2021 for Modaraba
(hereinafter referred to as the relevant laws).

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except short term investments that are
measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is Modaraba's functional and presentation currency. All financial
information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Modaraba’s
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future period affected. Actual results may differ from these estimates.



3.2 Provision against non performing financing

3.3 Impairment of other financial assets

3.4 Provision for taxation

3.5 Valuation of short term investments

3.6 Changes in Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Pronouncements

3.6.1

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 

(Period beginning on or after)

IAS 1

IAS 8

IAS 12

IAS 12

IFRS 17

3.6.2

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 
(Period beginning on or after)

IFRS 16

IAS 1

IAS 7

IFRS 7

IAS 21

IFRS 7 & 9

The Modaraba reviews its overdue receivables from Ijarah and Musharakah as disclosed in note 4.2, 8, 9 & 11 to the financial
statements at each reporting date to assess whether subjective provision should be recorded in the profit and loss, in addition to
the mandatory provisions required in accordance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

Provision is recognized based on management judgment regarding the recoverability of balance as disclosed in note 4.10 & 8 to
the financial statements. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

As disclosed in note 4.9 to the financial statements, provision has been made in these financial statements for income taxes in
accordance with Income tax Ordinance, 2001.

For the above purposes, and also in respect of making an estimate for income tax currently payable by the Modaraba (if so
required), the management considers the current income tax laws and the decisions of the appellate authorities on certain
issues.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during
the year

Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2024. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant
impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of 
accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 12 ' Income taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two 
Model Rules

Amendments to 'IAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and 
liabilities arising from a single transaction.
Initial Application of 'IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 9 - Comparative 
Information'

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The Modaraba has recorded its short term investments by using quotations from Pakistan Stock Exchange as disclosed in note 7
to the financial statements. This valuation is subjective to market price fluctuation and therefore, cannot be determined with
precision.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and relevant to the Modaraba, would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standard or interpretation:

Amendments to IFRS 16 "Leases" - Clarification on how seller-lessee 
subsequentely measures sale and lease back transaction

Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) 

Amendments to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" 

Amendments to IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments Disclosures"- Supplier Finance 
Arrangements

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments) 

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruements - 
Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026



IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of IFRS

IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information

IFRS S2 Climate-Related Disclosures

Note 4
Material Accounting Policy Information

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

4.2 Musharakah investment

4.3 Investment property

4.4 Fixed assets

Assets given to customers under ijarah arrangements

Assets in own use - Tangible

Depreciation on additions is charged from the date the asset is brought to use untill the date the asset is in business use. 

The Modaraba is currently evaluating the potential impact on its financial statements.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all periods presented, unless stated otherwise. 

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks.

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, including property under construction
for such purposes, is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition the Modaraba
values its investment property, which is held to earn rentals and / or for capital appreciation purposes, using the cost model i.e.
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss.

Leased assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to income
by applying the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset less salvage value is written off over the leased period, which
is considered to be the estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation on additions and disposals during the year is charged
proportionately from the date of commencement of the lease to the date of its maturity / termination.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they are disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit and loss in the period of derecognition.

Compensation from third parties for investment property that is impaired, lost or given up is recognized in profit or loss when
the compensation becomes receivable.

Musharakah investments are stated net of provision. Provision is recognized in accordance with prudential regulations for
Modarabas issued by SECP or on the estimate of management, whichever is higher. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to
income by applying the straight-line method at the rates given in note 14.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Subsequent costs are included in assets' carrying
amounts when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. Gain or loss on disposal of assets is charged to the profit and loss in the year of disposal.

Other than the aforementioned standards, interpretations, and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards, which
have not been notified locally, in relation to the Modaraba, by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at
June 30, 2024:

Depreciation on investment property is charged to income on straight-line method over its estimated useful life at the rates
specified in note 12 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions to investment property is charged from the date from
which the asset is brought to use till the date the asset is in business use. 



4.5 Creditors and other liabilities

4.6 Provisions

4.7 Contingent Liability

4.8 Revenue recognition

Ijarah rentals

Musharakah profit

Rental income

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in profit and loss as other income when:

- the Modaraba’s right to receive payment have been established; 
- it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Modaraba; and 
- the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Return on deposit accounts

4.9 Taxation
Current

Deferred
Deferred taxation is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary timing differences
and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Return on deposits with banks is recognized on accrual basis.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Future operating losses are not
provided for.

Revenue from Ijarah and Murabaha is recognized as per the requirements of the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS).
Repayment schedule is agreed at the start of facility. Payments are usually due over the period of contract at different dates.

Ijarah income is recognized in income on an accrual basis as and when the rental becomes due, unless another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit of the use derived from the leased asset is diminished.

Profit on diminishing Musharakah financing is recognized on accrual basis. Additional profit, if any, is recognized on declaration
by the investee company in accordance with terms of issue.

Rental income from investment properties is recognized on accrual basis.

An item of operating fixed assets and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on derecognition of an item of operating fixed
assets is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognized as
other income in profit and loss.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Modaraba has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Modaraba; or the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Under the current tax law, provision for tax is made on taxable income at the current tax rates applicable to the Modaraba after
taking into account available tax exemptions and tax credits, if any.

Deferred tax is calculated based on the rates that have been enacted or notified for subsequent enactment up to the reporting
date and are expected to apply to the period when the difference arises.

Creditors and other liabilities are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and
services received whether billed to the Modaraba or not.



4.10 Financial instruments

4.10.1 Financial assets

Classification

a) Financial assets at amortized cost

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Reclassification

Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category to the fair value through
profit and loss measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit and loss as a reclassification
adjustment at the reclassification date.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit and loss measurement category to the amortized cost measurement
category, fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

When the Modaraba changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected financial assets
accordingly. The Modaraba applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date.

In case of reclassification out of the amortized cost measurement category to fair value through profit and loss measurement
category, fair value of the financial asset is measured at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference
between the previous amortized cost and fair value is recognized in profit and loss.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

The management determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition and classifies its financial
assets in the following categories:

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income. However, the Modaraba can make an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular
investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit and loss to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income unless these are held for trading in which case these have to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category to the amortized cost
measurement category, the financial asset is reclassified at its fair vaue at the reclassification date. However, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of
the financial asset at the reclassification date. The effective interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not
adjusted as a result of the reclassification.

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade-date – the date on which the Modaraba
commits to purchase or sell the asset. The Modaraba initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs.

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date
accounting or settlement date accounting.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit and loss measurement category to the fair value through other
comprehensive income measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value.



Subsequent measurement

Derecognition

- 

- 

Impairment of financial assets

The Modaraba recognizes the impairment at each reporting date for outstanding Ijarah and Musharakahh receivables on the
basis of Prudential Regulations issued for Modarabas by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and
subjective evaluation as per IFRS 9.

For other financial assets, the Modaraba recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at
amortized cost and through other comprehensive income. In case of financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and carrying amount of the financial asset
in the statement of financial position is reduced.

The Modaraba directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when it has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

If the Modaraba's continuing involvement is in only a part of a financial asset, the Modaraba allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.

If the Modaraba transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognizes either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract.

the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or

When the Modaraba has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Modaraba
continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Modaraba also
recognizes an associated liability which cannot be offset with the related asset. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Modaraba has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Modaraba could be required to repay.

b) the Modaraba has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in profit and loss.

the Modaraba has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

Financial assets ‘at fair value through other comprehensive income’ are marked to market using the closing market rates and are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these financial
assets are recognized in other comprehensive income. Interest calculated using the effective interest rate method is credited to
the profit and loss. Dividends on equity instruments are credited to the profit and loss when the Modaraba’s right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these financial assets are
taken to the profit and loss in the period in which these arise.

Fair values of quoted investments are based on current prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Modaraba measures the investments at cost less impairment in value, if any.

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or
modification does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset, the Modaraba recalculates the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit and loss.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method. Gain or loss on
financial assets not part of hedging relationship is recognized in profit and loss when the financial asset is derecognized,
reclassified, through the amortization process or in order to recognize impairment gains or losses.

the Modaraba has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either: 

a)

Financial assets are derecognized when:



4.10.2 Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

All other liabilities

Derecognition

4.11 Earnings per certificate

The Modaraba presents basic and diluted earnings per certificate (EPC). Basic EPC is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary certificate holders of the Modaraba by the weighted average number of ordinary certificates outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPC is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders and the
weighted average number of ordinary certificates outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary certificates, if any.

If the Modaraba repurchases a part of a financial liability, the Modaraba allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
liability between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is derecognized based on the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the repurchase. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, for the part derecognized is recognized
in profit and loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit and loss. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost except for financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition
or when the continuing involvement approach applies.

The Modaraba does not reclassify any of its financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value minus transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value
through profit and loss. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognized at fair value and
transaction costs are recognized in the profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

The amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of financial liability is presented in other
comprehensive income and the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability is presented in profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency or a group of financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the Modaraba's key management
personnel. The Modaraba has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss account.

All other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Modaraba measures, at each reporting date, the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. Where the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Modaraba measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The Modaraba recognizes the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal), that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized, in the profit and loss.



4.12 Related party transactions

4.13 Impairment of non- financial assets

-

-

-

4.14 Operating segments

a)

b)

c)

4.14.1 Segment assets and liabilities

-  Musharakah finances; and
-  Investment Property.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised recoverable
amount but limited to the extent of the initial cost of the asset. A reversal of the impairment loss is recognized in the profit and
loss.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The Chief Executive Officer of the Modaraba has been identified as Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Valuation techniques used to measure fair value are applied consistently unless a change in a valuation technique or its
application results in a measurement that is equally or more representative of fair value in the circumstances. Revisions resulting
from a change in the valuation technique or its application are accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Modaraba has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses
relating to transactions with other components of the same entity);

whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and

for which discrete financial information is available.

Fair value hierarchy categorizes into following three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Modaraba can access at the
measurement date.

-  Ijarah finances;

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's length on the same terms
and conditions as are applicable to third party transactions or otherwise as approved by the Board of Directors.

All these operating segments are located in Pakistan.

The assets of a segment include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of receivables and fixed assets,
net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities are primarily unallocable.

At each reporting date, the Modaraba reviews the carrying amounts of its non‑financial assets to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and impairment loss is
recognized in the profit and loss.

The Modaraba is divided into three operating segments:

The Modaraba uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.



4.14.2 Allocation of segment expenses

4.15 Related party transactions

Name of Related party Basis of Relationship % of Holding in 
the Modaraba

IBL Modaraba Management 
(Private) Limited Management company 10.00%

University of Management
and Technology (UMT) Common management 14.16%

Note 5
Summary of Other Accounting Policy

5.1 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

5.2 Dividend - Profit distribution and other appropriations of profit

5.3 Fair value measurement

5.4 Provident fund

The Modaraba measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Modaraba has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects the effect of non-performance risk. When applicable, the
Modaraba measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is
regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

The Modaraba operates an approved provident fund for all its employees. The Modaraba and the employees both make equal
monthly contributions to the fund at the rate of 10% of the gross salary of employees.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

When measuring fair value, the Modaraba takes into account the characteristics of asset or liability which include the condition
and location of the asset and restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset.

Dividend distribution to the Modaraba’s certificate holders is recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Modaraba Management Company. Transfer to statutory reserve and any of the
mandatory appropriations as may be required by law are recognized in the period to which these relate.

All identifiable expenses are directly attributed to the respective segments. 

Related parties comprise the parent company, associated companies / undertakings, directors of the Modaraba and their close
relatives and key management personnel of the Modaraba. The Modaraba in the normal course of business carries out
transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and due to related parties are shown under respective notes to
these financial statements. Following are the key related parties of the Modaraba:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Modaraba intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.



Note 6
Bank Balances

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Cash at banks:
- Savings accounts 6.1 105,893,795   81,748,939       
- Current account 6.2 355,150         355,150           

106,248,945   82,104,089       

6.1

6.2

Opening balance          355,150             355,150 
Amount transferred during the year                   -                       -   
Dividend claim received and settled                   -                       -   
Closing balance          355,150             355,150 

6.3

Note 7
Short Term Investments

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Investments in listed equity securities:
- At fair value through other comprehensive income 7.1 1,671,730      1,121,511        
- At fair value through profit and loss 7.2 246,375         185,282           

1,918,105      1,306,793        

7.1 At fair value through OCI

2024 2023

Holdings are in ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each.

29,267                    29,267          The Searle Company Limited 1,671,730      1,121,511        

7.2 At fair value through profit or loss

Holdings are in ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each.

339                        288              IBL HealthCare Limited 10,478           9,375               
250                        250              Attock Refinery Limited 87,897           42,907             

100,000                  100,000        First Punjab Modaraba 148,000         133,000           
100,589                  100,538        246,375         185,282           

7.3

7.4

Note 8
Ijarah Rentals Receivable

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Considered good 484,497         224,868           
Considered doubtful 8.1 3,004,088      3,004,088        

3,488,585      3,228,956        
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (3,004,088)     (3,004,088)       

484,497         224,868           

8.1

8.2

The savings accounts earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from 8% to 21% (2023: 15% to
20%) per annum.

Profit rates on Ijarah arrangements range from 17% to 69% (2023: 10% to 52%) per annum. These are secured against ijarah
assets, promissory notes and personal guarantees of musta'jir. The Modaraba is entitled to repossess and sell the asset in case of
default by the customer.

This includes Rs. 355,150 (2023: Rs. 355,150) held in dividend account. Movement in dividend account is as follows:

These are valued on the basis of market price per share available on Pakistan Stock Exchange as at the reporting date.

The above figures of cash and bank balances reconcile to the amount of cash and cash equivalents shown in the statement of cash
flows as at the reporting date.

No. of shares / certificates 

Provision includes Rs. 2,630,798 receivable from M. Sharif & Sons. Modaraba has filed a case against M/s Sharif & Sons in Lahore
High Court as regular filing. Next date for hearing is not yet fixed by registrar office.

During the year, IBL HealthCare Limited issued 57 bonus shares to the Company, out of which 6 shares were withheld by the issuer.

  Name of entity



Note 9
Short Term Musharakah Receivables

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Short term Musharakah receivables - unsecured 9.1 44,000,000    13,553,483       

9.1

9.2

Note 10
Advances, Prepayments and Other Receivables

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Advance to employees (Unsecured - considered good) 10.1 -                174,405           
Prepayments 197,188         154,455           
Accrued profit on Musharakah receivable (secured)
- Profit receivable 6,453,042      3,079,206        
- Less: profit held in suspense account (1,607,947)     (1,607,947)       

4,845,095      1,471,259        
Profit receivable on savings accounts 1,688,411      467,337           
Dividend receivable -                919                  
Other receivables (unsecured) 10.2 57,356           201,266           

6,788,050      2,469,641        

10.1

10.2

Opening balance 201,266         201,266           
Addition during the year 57,356           -                  
Received during the year -                -                  
Balance written off during the year (201,266)        -                  
Closing balance 57,356           201,266           

Note 11
Long Term Musharakah Receivables

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Considered good      25,305,354        55,438,658 
Considered doubtful        6,093,971          6,093,971 

11.1      31,399,325        61,532,629 
Less: Expected credit loss allowance 11.2      (6,093,971)        (6,093,971)
Less: Current portion    (20,557,040)       (29,890,654)

       4,748,314        25,548,004 

11.1

11.2

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Opening balance        6,093,971          6,093,971 
Recognized during the year                   -                       -   
Balance written off                   -                       -   
Closing balance        6,093,971          6,093,971 

This represents Musharakah finance provided to customers for business activities for a maximum period of five years. The effective
rate of profit on these finances ranges from 15% to 21.32% (2023: 15% to 21.32%) per annum. These receivables are secured by
way of hypothecation of goods, book debts and equitable mortgage of property.

This represents Musharakah finance provided to customers for business activities for a maximum period of one year. The effective
rate of profit on this finance is 22% to 24% (2023: 12%) per annum. This finance is secured by way of equitable mortgage of
property.

This represents advances given to employees against salary and expenses. The maximum amount due as at the end of any month
during the year from any employee was Rs. 149,000 (2023: Rs. 200,000). 

Movement in other receivables is as follows:

This represents expected credit loss allowance against overdue principal amount of Musharakah finance on time based criteria as
required by the prudential regulations "Prudential Regulations 2021" applicable to the Modaraba. Accrued profit of Rs. Nil (2023: Rs.
1,607,947) is held in suspense account (Refer to note 10). Movement in expected credit loss allowance is as follows:

The Modaraba extended musharakah finances to certain customers. These finances were extended to customers on guarantee of
third parties and collateral of certain properties, whose title is still not transferred in favour of guarantors. The guarantors have
agreed for repayment of such financing to the Modaraba in case of default by the customers. As of the reporting date, the Modaraba
has yet not been able to create any lien on such properties to secure its interest.



Note 12
Investment Property

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Cost
Opening balance 12.1    100,000,465      100,000,465 
Additions / (Deletions)                   -                       -   
Closing balance    100,000,465      100,000,465 

Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance    (52,916,943)       (47,916,915)
Charged during the year 12.2 & 23      (5,000,028)        (5,000,028)
Closing balance    (57,916,971)       (52,916,943)
Carrying amount as at 30 June,      42,083,494        47,083,522 

Rate of depreciation 5% 5%

12.1

12.2

12.3 Amounts recognized in profit and loss

The Modaraba carries this investment property under cost model. The fair valuation of the property was performed by an
independent valuer as at June 30, 2021 who determined the fair value and forced sale value of this investment property at Rs. 90
million and Rs. 76.5 million respectively. 

Investment property represents 5th floor of the Library Building situated at C-II, Johar Town, Lahore. This floor measures 13,730
square feet.

The rental income in respect of this property amounting to Rs. 7,495,440 has been recognized in profit and loss and included in
‘other income’. 

Depreciation on this property is calculated using straight line method. The depreciation on investment property is charged to
operating expenses (Refere note 23).



Note 13
Fixed Assets under Ijarah Arrangements

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Cost

Balance as at July 01, 2023 4,413,401           27,599,303         7,543,425           39,556,129         
Additions -                    473,700              6,503,500           6,977,200           
Disposals / Adjustments           (4,300,401)           (8,449,303)           (7,543,425) (20,293,129)        
Balance as at June 30, 2024 113,000              19,623,700         6,503,500           26,240,200         

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at July 01, 2023 3,426,013           14,581,594         3,035,780           21,043,387         
Charge for the year 177,720              5,829,696           5,223,595           11,231,011         
Disposals / Adjustments (3,518,970)          (6,640,880)          (6,198,225)          (16,358,075)        
Balance as at June 30, 2024 84,763               13,770,410         2,061,150           15,916,323         

Total as at June 30, 2024 28,237              5,853,290         4,442,350         10,323,877      

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cost

Balance as at July 01, 2022 3,911,101           32,301,403         1,639,225           37,851,729         
Additions 502,300              959,700              6,077,600           7,539,600           
Disposals / Adjustments -                    (5,661,800)          (173,400)            (5,835,200)          
Balance as at June 30, 2023 4,413,401           27,599,303         7,543,425           39,556,129         

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at July 01, 2022 2,871,236           10,356,688         870,441              14,098,365         
Charge for the year 554,777              6,368,463           2,312,729           9,235,969           
Disposals / Adjustments -                    (2,143,557)          (147,390)            (2,290,947)          
Balance as at June 30, 2023 3,426,013           14,581,594         3,035,780           21,043,387         

Total as at June 30, 2023 987,388            13,017,709      4,507,645         18,512,742      

Depreciation rates 50% 25%-100% 40%-100%

13.1 General description of significant ijarah arrangements (IFAS-2)

13.2

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Not later than one year 7,773,555           12,603,634         
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,592,050           3,201,580           

9,365,605           15,805,214         

This represents Ijarah arrangements made by the Modaraba at profit rates ranging from 25% to 69% (2023: 10% to 52%)
per annum. These arrangements are secured against assets under ijarah, personal / corporate guarantees, demand
promissory notes executed by Musta’jir and other collaterals.

Aggregate amount of future ijarah rentals receivable on the basis of ijarah arrangements executed upto the reporting date
are as follows:

Description Plant and 
Machinery Vehicles

Office 
Equipment and 

Computers
Total



Note 14
Fixed Assets under Own Use

Machinery Furniture 
and Fittings Vehicles Office 

Equipment

Computers 
and 

Accessories
Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Cost

Balance as at July 01, 2023 1,987,400      607,010        2,408,000      1,453,517    2,904,708      9,360,635      

Additions -               -               -               -              -               -               

Disposals / Adjustments -               -               -               -              -               -               

Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,987,400      607,010        2,408,000      1,453,517    2,904,708      9,360,635      

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at July 01, 2023 1,987,400      550,626        2,407,987      1,395,888    2,780,035      9,121,936      

Charge for the year -               56,384          13                15,096         88,044          159,537        

Disposals / Adjustments -               

Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,987,400      607,010        2,408,000      1,410,984    2,868,079      9,281,473      

Total as at June 30, 2024 -              -              -              42,533       36,629        79,162        

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cost

Balance as at July 01, 2022 1,987,400      607,010        4,057,080      1,453,517    2,904,708      11,009,715    

Additions -               -               -               -              -               -               

Disposals / Adjustments -               -               (1,649,080)    -              -               (1,649,080)    

Balance as at June 30, 2023 1,987,400      607,010        2,408,000      1,453,517    2,904,708      9,360,635      

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at July 01, 2022 1,987,400      453,966        3,704,242      1,379,307    2,691,991      10,216,906    

Charge for the year -               96,660          54,970          16,581         88,044          256,255        

Disposals / Adjustments -               -               (1,351,225)    -              -               (1,351,225)    

Balance as at June 30, 2023 1,987,400      550,626        2,407,987      1,395,888    2,780,035      9,121,936      

Total as at June 30, 2023 -              56,384        13                57,629       124,673      238,699      

Depreciation rates 20% 20% 20% 20% 33.33%

14.1

14.2

These contain fully depreciated assets of Rs. 9,021,055 (2023: Rs. 8,537,745) that are still in use by the Modaraba.

The depreciation charge of fixed assets under own use is allocated to operating expenses (Refer note 23).

Description



Note 15
Creditors, Accrued and Other Liabilities

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Accrued expenses          534,964 373,573
Payable to the Modaraba Management Company 15.1        2,434,992 1,533,515
Worker's Welfare Fund payable 15.2          939,531 448,876
Other liabilities          745,148 498,947

       4,654,635          2,854,911 

15.1

15.2 Workers' Welfare Fund
         448,876             142,173 
         490,655             306,703 
         939,531             448,876 
                  -                       -   
         939,531             448,876 

Note 16
Long Term Security Deposits

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 6,328,911      5,879,735        
Received during the year 16.1 1,433,650      1,497,816        
Adjusted during the year (3,935,411)     (1,048,640)       
Closing balance 3,827,150      6,328,911        
Current portion shown as current liabilities (3,205,350)     (4,253,911)       

621,800         2,075,000        

16.1

Note 17
Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax (asset) / liability (2,027,989)     361,132           

17.1

17.2 Breakup of Deferred tax (asset) / liability

Taxable temporary differences

- Accelerated tax depreciation 1,637,433      3,872,541        
- Short term investments 417,933         168,227           

Deductible temporary differences

- Musharakah receivables (1,767,252)     (1,767,252)       
- Ijarah rentals receivable (871,186)        (871,186)          
- Creditors, accrued and other liabilities (978,612)        (574,893)          
- Advances, prepayments and other receivables (466,305)        (466,305)          

(2,027,989)     361,132           

17.3 Deferred tax assets / liabilities on temporary differences are measured at effective rate of 29% (2023: 29%).

17.4 Reconciliation of deferred tax (assets) / liabilities - Net

Opening balance 361,132         -                      
Deferred tax (income) / expense during the year recognised in profit or loss (2,526,676)     575,794           
Deferred tax expense / (income) during the year recognised in other 

comprehensive income 137,555         (214,662)          
Closing balance (2,027,989)     361,132           

This represents security deposits received against ijarah assets and there is no restriction on utilization of these balances as per the
written agreements.

Being prudent, the management has recognized deferred tax asset since it believes that the utilization of related deductible
temporary differences against future taxable profits is certain. Breakup is as follows:

Closing balance

Expense recognised during the year

Payments made during the year

This represents amount payable to related party at 10% of annual profit as disclosed in note 24.

Opening balance



17.5 Analysis of change in deferred tax 2024 2023 2024 2023

Accelerated tax depreciation             1,637,433     3,872,541      (2,235,108)          3,872,541 
Musharakah receivables            (1,767,252)    (1,767,252)                   -          (1,767,252)
Ijarah rentals receivable               (871,186)      (871,186)                   -             (871,186)
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities               (978,612)      (574,893)         (403,719)           (574,893)
Advances, prepayments and 

other receivables               (466,305)      (466,305)                   -             (466,305)
Short term investments                417,933        168,227          112,151             382,889 

           (2,027,989)        361,132      (2,526,676)             575,794 

Note 18
Certificate Capital

2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Authorized

              50,000,000     50,000,000 Modaraba Certificates of Rs. 10 each    500,000,000      500,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

20,000,000             20,000,000    Modaraba Certificates of Rs. 10 each    200,000,000      200,000,000 
issued as fully paid in cash

1,687,500               1,687,500     Modaraba Certificates of Rs. 10 each      16,875,000        16,875,000 
issued as fully paid bonus certificates

              21,687,500     21,687,500    216,875,000      216,875,000 

18.1

2024 2023

Opening balance of certificates 21,687,500    21,687,500       
Certificates issued / cancelled during the year -                -                  
Closing balance of certificates 21,687,500    21,687,500       

18.2

18.3

2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

               2,170,905       2,170,905 IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited      21,709,050        21,709,050 
               3,070,000       3,070,000 University of Management and Technology      30,700,000        30,700,000 
               1,424,070       1,424,070      14,240,700        14,240,700 
               6,664,975       6,664,975      66,649,750        66,649,750 

Note 19
Statutory Reserves

Note 20
Unrealized Gain on Revaluation of Investments  - Fair Value through OCI

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Fair value through other comprehensive income 20.1        1,748,795          1,336,131 

20.1

20.1.1 Opening balance        1,336,131          2,552,552 
Appreciation / (dimunition) on revaluation during the year          550,219        (1,431,083)
Related deferred taxation         (137,555)             214,662 
Closing balance        1,748,795          1,336,131 

There are no agreements and restrictions for modaraba certificate holders.

Statement of Financial 
Position Statement of Profit and Loss

-------------- Rupees -------------- -------------- Rupees --------------

Number of certificates

Number of certificates

Reconciliation of the number of certificates outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the year is as under:

Certificates of the Modaraba held by associates / related parties are as under:

Statutory reserves represent profits set aside in compliance with the requirements of prudential regulations for Modarabas issued by SECP.
During the year, 20% of profit  amounting to  Rs. 2,290,965 (2023: Rs. 2,001,438) has been transferred to statutory reserves.

This represents appreciation in value of investments classified as fair value through OCI. This cannot be distributed to the Modaraba
certificate holders. Reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

Director - Ibrahim Hassan Murad

    Number of certificates



Note 21
Contingencies and Commitments

Contingencies

21.1

21.2

21.3

Commitments

21.3

Note 22
Other Income

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Documentation charges -                             77,781 
Gain on termination of ijarah arrangements 2,267            397,678           
Gain on disposal of fixed assets under own use -                143,345           
Miscellaneous 143,953                             -   

         146,220             618,804 

Note 23
Operating Expenses

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 23.1        5,645,153          5,700,982 
Communication expenses          240,483             202,053 
Travelling and conveyance          808,537             839,544 
Postage and stamps            21,601              20,937 
Marketing and advertisement          109,782              61,781 
Legal and professional charges        1,234,996             479,496 
Locker rent              8,700                8,700 
Fees and subscription        1,275,750          1,061,269 
Repairs and maintenance          227,860              62,321 
Insurance            53,667             192,282 
Printing and stationery          145,035             134,803 
Depreciation:  
-   Investment property 12        5,000,028          5,000,028 
-   Owned - tangible 14          159,537             256,255 
Entertainment          380,093             304,386 
Auditors' remuneration 23.4          827,500             488,175 
Bank charges              4,848              11,384 
Office supplies          174,014              52,777 
Balance written off          201,266                     -   

     16,518,850        14,877,173 

In respect of tax year 2021, Assistant/ deputy commissioner inland revenue (DCIR) issued notice dated April 18, 2022. Tax payer
has submitted sufficient reply regarding information required. However, DCIR passed order dated August 26, 2022 by creating a
demand of Rs. 321,710. The taxpayer being aggrieved of the order passed by the DCIR preferred an appeal before Commissioner
Inland Revenue [Appeals][CIR(A)]. CIR(A) remanded back the case to DCIR. DCIR has issued the notice under section 129 dated
November 07, 2023 providing opportunity of being heard till date November 20, 2023. Taxpayer attended the hearing within due
date. The proceedings are pending till to date. No provision has been recorded in the financial statements as the management and
their tax advisor expect a favorable outcome.

In respect of tax year 2022, Assistant/ deputy commissioner inland revenue issued notice under section 161(1A) dated July 20,
2023 creating a demand of Rs. 1,723,196. Taxpayer has submitted the reply on August 22, 2023. The proceedings are pending till
to date. No provision has been recorded in the financial statements as the management and their tax advisor expect a favorable
outcome.

In respect of tax year 2023, Assistant/ deputy commissioner inland revenue issued notice under section 161(1A) dated May 07,
2024. Taxpayer has submitted the reply on August 27, 2024. The proceedings are pending till to date. No provision has been
recorded in the financial statements as the management and their tax advisor expect a favorable outcome

There are no material commitments outstanding as at the reporting date (2023: Nil).



23.1

Officers / 
Executives Others Total

Basic salary       1,959,867               1,371,270             3,331,137 1,984,508    1,267,097      3,251,605        
House rent allowance          881,925                  612,552             1,494,477 893,042      570,167         1,463,209        
Medical allowance          196,020                  136,158                332,178 198,450      126,736         325,186           
Other benefits          274,838                    11,613                286,451 392,710      36,000           428,710           
Bonus                        -   -             -                -                  
Employer's contribution

to provident fund          155,612                    45,298                200,910 176,520      55,752           232,272           
      3,468,262               2,176,891             5,645,153     3,645,230        2,055,752          5,700,982 

Number of persons 4 2 6 4 5 9

23.2

23.3

23.4 Auditors' remuneration 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Audit fee          400,000             290,000 
Review of half yearly financial statements          200,000             150,000 
CCG review fee          100,000              50,000 
Out of pocket expenses            75,000              48,175 
Other certifications            52,500                     -   

         827,500             538,175 
Note 24
Modaraba Company's Management Fee

Note 25

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Prior year 1,366,407                  (74,005)
Current period 11,129,151             2,985,912 

12,495,558    2,911,907        
Deferred tax 17.3 (2,526,676)                 575,794 

       9,968,882          3,487,701 

25.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before taxation 21,423,706    13,494,891       

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2023: 29%)        6,212,875          3,913,518 

Tax effect of amounts that are:

Deferred tax      (2,526,676)             575,794 
1,366,407      (74,005)            

Others        4,916,276           (927,606)
       9,968,882          3,487,701 

25.2

11,129,151    2,985,912        
(11,128,588)   (2,985,873)       

(563)                                (39)
Difference -                -                  

25.3

25.4

In accordance with Section 18 of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, management fee @ 10%
of annual profits is paid to the Modaraba Management Company.

Portion of levy as per IFRIC 21 / IAS 37
Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing income tax under IAS -

Taxation

Prior year adjustment

Reconciliation of levy and income tax under IAS -12

Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws

The current tax expense for the year is calculated using corporation tax rate of 29% (2023: 29%). Deferred tax assets and liabilities
on temporary differences are measured at effective rate of 29% (2023: 29%).

Super tax is not applicable as income of FIBL does not exceed Rs. 150 million.

---------------------------Rupees-------------------------

Officers comprise Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and Head of Compliance. 

No remuneration has been paid to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and directors of the Modaraba. The same has been paid by the
Modaraba Management Company.

This includes Rs. 200,910 (2023: Rs. 232,272) in respect of contribution to the staff provident fund. Salaries and allowances
comprise the following:

2024 2023

Total Officers / 
Executives Others



Note 26
Earnings / (Loss) per Modaraba Certificate - Basic and Diluted

2024 2023
Rupess Rupess

Net profit for the year (Rupees) 11,454,824    10,007,190       

21,687,500    21,687,500       

Earnings per certificate - basic (Rupees) 0.53              0.46                 

26.1

26.2

Note 27
Cash Generated from Operations

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Profit before Tax 21,423,706    13,494,891       
Adjustment for:

- Depreciation on fixed assets under own use 159,537         256,255           
- Depreciation on investment property 5,000,028      5,000,028        
- Depreciation on fixed assets under ijarah arrangements 11,231,011    9,235,969        
- Reversal of suspension on Musharakah -                (3,167,273)       
- Reversal of suspension on ijarah rentals -                -                  
- Gain on disposal of fixed assets under own use -                (143,345)          
- Loss on short term investments (61,094)         -                  
- Dividend income (3,749)           (262)                
- Provision for management company fee 2,434,992      1,533,515        
- Provision for Worker's Welfare Fund 490,655         306,703           
- Revaluation loss on investment at fair value through profit or loss -                35,284             
- Gain on termination of ijarah arrangements (2,267)           (397,678)          
- Profit on deposits (9,217,038)     (3,889,600)       

10,032,075    8,769,596        

Operating profit before working capital changes 31,455,781    22,264,487       

Increase in current assets:
- Advances, prepayments and other receivables (3,098,254)     6,075,957        
- Ijarah rentals receivable (259,629)        988,013           
- Short term Musharakah receivables (30,446,517)   13,946,517       

Decrease in current liabilities:
- Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 407,593         3,390,842        

(33,396,807)   24,401,329       
Cash (Used in) / generated from operations (1,941,026)     46,665,816       

27.1 Changes in Financing Activities
As at June 30, 

2023
Cash flows   

(Net)
As at June 30, 

2024

             Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598          -             -                10,834,598       

As at June 30, 
2022

Cash flows   
(Net)

As at June 30, 
2023

             Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598          -             -                10,834,598       

Note 28
Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

28.1

Weighted average number of Modaraba certificates outstanding (Numbers)

Earnings per Modaraba certificate is calculated as under:

Basic earnings per Modaraba certificate have been computed by dividing profit for the year as stated above with weighted average
number of Modaraba certificates.

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per Modaraba certificate as at the reporting date (2023: Nil).

 --------------------------------   Rupees ---------------------------------

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged. Related parties of the Modaraba include the Modaraba Management Company, directors
and key management personnel of the Modaraba Management Company, key management personnel of the Modaraba and their
close family members, the provident fund trust and entities with common directors or under common management and control.

Non-cash 
changes

Non-cash 
changes

Contribution to the provident fund is made in accordance with the services rules. Modaraba management fee, if any, is accrued in
accordance with the requirements of the Modaraba Regulations. Remuneration of key management personnel is in accordance with

 --------------------------------   Rupees ---------------------------------



28.2

Transactions during the year

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

IBL Modaraba Management Associated Management Management fee accrued 2,434,992 1,533,515        
(Private) Limited undertaking Company Management fee paid 1,533,515      339,994

University of Management Associated Common Rent of library building accrued 7,495,440      7,495,440        
 and Technology (UMT) undertaking Management Rent received 7,495,440      8,744,680        

Provident Fund Associated Employee Provident fund paid during the 200,910         232,272           
undertaking Fund year

Outstanding Balance at the year end Receivable / (Payable)

Balance as at June 30,

Payable to the Modaraba Management Company (2,434,992) (1,533,515)

28.3

Note 29
Provision for Doubtful Receivables

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 9,098,059      9,098,059        

Add: Charged during the year -                   -                      
Less: Reversed / written off during the year -                   -                      

-                   -                      
Closing balance 9,098,059      9,098,059        

29.1 Break up of closing balance

Provision for doubtful ijarah rental receivables 8 3,004,088      3,004,088        
Provision for doubtful Musharakah 11 6,093,971      6,093,971        

9,098,059      9,098,059        

Note 30
Financial Risk Management

The Modaraba's overall risk management procedures, to minimize the potential adverse effects of financial market on the Modaraba's
performance, are as follows:

Related party Relationship Nature of Transaction

The Modaraba's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and profit rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Modaraba's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board) of the Management Company and chief financial officer. The Board
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Modaraba Management Company has also provided free of cost office space to the Modaraba.

the terms of their employment. Other transactions are carried out at agreed terms.

Basis of 
Relationship

Details of transactions with related parties and balances outstanding with them as at the reporting date are as follows:



30.1 Market risk

30.1.1 Currency risk

30.1.2 Equity price risk

2024 2023

Reporting date index points             78,445             41,453 

Investment at fair value through OCI
+1% -                            16,717 
-1% -                           (16,717)

+1% -                            11,215 
-1% -                           (11,215)

Investment at fair value through profit and loss
+1%               2,464                   -   
-1%             (2,464)                   -   

+1%               1,853                   -   
-1%             (1,853)                   -   

30.1.3 Profit rate risk

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Ijarah rental receivables 484,497          224,868          
Musharakah finance 69,305,354     68,992,141     

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances - saving accounts 105,893,795    81,748,939     

2024

2023

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market profit rates.

As at the reporting date the profit rate profile of the Modaraba’s profit bearing financial instruments were as under:

2023

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign currency, interest rate, commodity price and equity price that will affect the Modaraba's income or the value of
its holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables
that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Modaraba is not exposed to currency risk arising from currency
exposure as Modaraba is not involved in foreign currency transactions.

Equity price risk represents the risk that the fair value of equity investments will fluctuate because of changes in levels of
indices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market. The Modaraba is exposed to equity price risk as it
holds investments at fair value through profit and loss and fair value through other comprehensive income. The
sensitivity analysis for fluctuation in equity prices, represented as a function of KSE Price Index, is given below:

Changes in 
KSE index

Effects on
Profit

Before Tax

Effects on 
Equity

---------------Rupees--------------

2024



Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

30.2 Credit risk

30.2.1

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Bank balances 106,248,945  82,104,089     
Ijarah rental receivables 484,497         224,868         
Advances and other receivables 6,590,862      2,315,186       
Short term investments 1,918,105      1,306,793       
Short term Musharakah receivables 44,000,000    13,553,483     
Long term Musharakah receivables 25,305,354    55,438,658     

184,547,763  154,943,077   

30.2.2

Media advertising 11,559,915         40,080,565 
Education -                         290,971 
Construction 4,602,233             9,764,395 
Trading and others 53,143,207         21,777,980 
Individuals 9,582,555             6,401,157 

78,887,910    78,315,068     

30.2.3

Aging of Musharakah and ijarah rental receivables

Not past due 67,229,861    69,007,948     
Past due 1 - 180 days 484,447         2,053,610       
Past due 181 days - 1 year 50                -                
Past due 1 - 2 years -               -                
More than 2 years 11,173,552    7,253,510       

78,887,910    78,315,068     

30.2.4

Geographically all credit exposure is concentrated in Pakistan.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for receivables (Musharakah financing and ijarah rentals receivables) as at the
reporting date by type of customer was as follows:

The aging of Musharakah, ijarah rental and trade receivables and related impairment loss as at the reporting date is as
follows:

The Modaraba has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy parties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Modaraba has internally developed rating
criteria to rate its customers which is supplemented by ratings supplied by independent rating agencies where available.
The Modaraba also uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its customers. The
Modaraba’s exposure and the credit ratings of its parties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that
are reviewed annually.

The management monitors and limits Modaraba's exposure to credit risk through monitoring of clients' credit exposure,
reviews and conservative estimates of provisions for doubtful receivables, if any, and through the prudent use of collateral
policy. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets
are adequately diversified in organizations of sound financial standing covering various industrial sectors and segments.

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date, net of impairment, was as follows:

If profit rates, as at the reporting date, fluctuate by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit before
taxation for the year would have been Rs. 1,058,938 (2023: Rs. 817,489) higher / lower. This analysis is prepared assuming
the amounts of floating rate instruments outstanding at reporting dates, and is not representative for the whole year.

The Modaraba does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss of the Modaraba.

The income of the Modaraba is not dependent on the single customer and the Modaraba has no single customer from
whom it is generating more than 10% revenue.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the bank balances
and investments held with some major counterparties as at the reporting date:



Rating
Short term Long term Agency 2024 2023

Rupees Rupees

The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA 102,482,475  79,785,933     
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 3,137,116      1,738,057       
MCB Islamic Bank A-1 A+ PACRA 629,354         580,099         

106,248,945  82,104,089     

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Note 7) 1,671,730      1,121,511       

30.3 Liquidity risk

June 30, 2024

Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598    10,834,598    10,834,598    -               -                
Musharakah finances payable 700,000        700,000        700,000        -               -                
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 3,715,104      3,715,104      3,715,104     -               -                

15,249,702    15,249,702    15,249,702    -               -                

June 30, 2023

Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598    10,834,598    10,834,598    -               -                
Musharakah finances payable 700,000        700,000        700,000        -               -                
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 2,406,035      2,406,035      2,406,035     -               -                

13,940,633    13,940,633    13,940,633    -               -                

30.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimation

Further, the Modaraba's exposure to credit risk and impairsment losses related to investments, murabaha financing, ijarah
financing, and other receivables are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate to their fair values. Fair
value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the reporting date.
The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities is considered not significantly different from book
value.

------------------------------------------(Rupees)--------------------------------------

Note 31 to the financial statements summarizes the maturity profile of the Modaraba's assets and liabilities.

The Modaraba's exposure related to ijarah receivables and Musharakah receivables are secured by collaterals held and the
Modaraba’s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse creditworthy
counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at the fair value of consideration paid or received, net of
transaction costs as appropriate, and subsequently carried at fair value or amortized cost.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Modaraba's reputation. Owing to the fact that the Modaraba is in a positive working capital position at the
year end, the management believes the liquidity risk to be low.

The table below analyses the Modaraba's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equate to their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual
cash flows

Within
1 year

Between 1
and 5 years Over 5 years

Rating



Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total 

June 30, 2024

Financial Assets:

Short term investments (Note 7) 1,918,105         -                                       -   1,918,105         

June 30, 2023

Financial Assets:

Short term investments (Note 7) 1,306,793         -                                       -             1,306,793 

30.5 Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as at June 30, 2024

At fair value 
through OCI

At amortized 
cost

Assets at fair 
value through 
profit and loss

Total

Bank balances -                   106,248,945      -                   106,248,945      
Short term investments 1,671,730         -                   246,375            1,918,105         
Advances and other receivables -                   6,590,862         -                   6,590,862         
Short term Musharakah receivables -                   44,000,000       -                   44,000,000       
Ijarah rentals receivable -                   484,497            -                   484,497            
Long term Musharakah receivables -                   25,305,354       -                   25,305,354       

1,671,730         182,629,658      246,375            184,547,763      

Financial assets as at June 30, 2023

At fair value 
through OCI

At amortized 
cost

Assets at fair 
value through 
profit and loss

Total

--------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------

Cah and bank balances -                   82,104,089       -                   82,104,089       
Short term investments 1,121,511         -                   185,282            1,306,793         
Advances and other receivables -                   2,315,186         -                   2,315,186         
Short term Musharakah receivables -                   13,553,483       -                   13,553,483       
Long term Musharakah receivables -                   55,438,658       -                   55,438,658       
Ijarah rentals receivable -                   224,868            -                   224,868            Long term advances and deposits -                   -                   -                   1,121,511         153,636,284      185,282            154,943,077      

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees 

Musharakah finances payable 700,000            700,000            
Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598       10,834,598       
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 3,715,104         2,406,035         

15,249,702       13,940,633       

Fair value hierarchy categories are described in note 5.3 to the financial statements.

The following table presents the Modaraba’s financial assets that are measured at fair value as at reporting date:

----------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------

--------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------



30.6 Operational Risks

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

30.7 Capital Risk Management

Note 31
Maturity of Assets and Liabilities

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Assets

Bank balances 106,248,945     -               -                  -                 -                106,248,945    
Ijarah rentals receivable 484,497           -               -                  -                 -                484,497          
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 1,688,411        4,902,451     197,188           -                 6,788,050        
Advance income tax -                  -               2,536,504         -                 -                2,536,504        
Short term investments 246,375           -               1,671,730         -                 -                1,918,105        
Musharakah receivables 4,025,359        6,610,092     52,444,948       6,224,955       -                69,305,354      
Long term deposits -                  -               -                  20,500            -                20,500            
Investment property 416,669           1,250,007     3,333,352         15,000,084     22,083,382     42,083,494      
Deferred tax asset -                  -               -                  2,027,989       -                2,027,989        
Fixed assets under own use -                  -               79,162             -                79,162            
Fixed assets under Ijarah arrangemements -                  153,574        7,670,293         2,500,010       -                10,323,877      

Total Assets - June 30, 2024 113,110,256     12,916,124   67,933,177       25,773,538     241,816,477    

Liabilities

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 745,148           -               3,909,487         -                 -                4,654,635        
Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598      -               -                  -                 -                10,834,598      
Musharakah finances 700,000           -               -                  -                 -                700,000          
Security deposits -                  -               3,205,350         621,800          -                3,827,150        
Income tax payable 11,140,150      -               -                  -                 -                11,140,150      
Total Liabilities - June 30, 2024 23,419,896      -               7,114,837         621,800          31,156,533      

Net Assets - June 30, 2024 89,690,360      12,916,124   60,818,340       25,151,738     210,659,944    

Total Assets - June 30, 2023 89,752,409      14,458,939   51,561,198       44,958,462     222,814,390    

Total Liabilities - June 30, 2023 12,394,677      -               9,552,257         2,075,000       24,021,934      

Net Assets - June 30, 2023 77,357,732      14,458,939   42,008,941       42,883,462     22,083,382     198,792,456    

2024 2023
Represented by: Rupees Rupees

Certificate capital 216,875,000   216,875,000    
Statutory Reserves 49,686,655     47,395,690      
Accumulated loss (57,650,506)   (66,814,365)     

208,911,149   197,456,325    
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments - Fair value through OCI 1,748,795      1,336,131        

210,659,944   198,792,456    

-                

22,083,382     

22,083,382     

22,083,382     

TotalFive years 
and above

-                

Up to one 
month

One month 
to three 
months

Three months 
to one year

One year to 
five years

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure
supporting the Modaraba’s operations either internally within the Modaraba or externally at the Modaraba’s service providers, and from external
factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of
investment management behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Modaraba’s activities.

The Modaraba’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with achieving its
objective of generating returns for certificate holders.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

The Modaraba’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide return
for certificate holders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain healthier capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
certificate holders value. The Modaraba manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in economic conditions.
There were no changes to the Modaraba's approach to capital management during the year and the Modaraba is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified

requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities
requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions
compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements
documentation of controls and procedures

ethical and business standards and



Note 32
Segment Reporting

32.1

Types of segments

- Ijarah finances
- Musharakah finances
- Investment property

32.2 Segment analysis

Ijarah Finances Musharakah 
Finances

Investment 
property Total Ijarah Finances Musharakah 

Finances
Investment 

property Total

Segment revenues / profits

Gross revenue from external customers 15,566,532         19,609,704         7,495,440        42,671,676         11,570,394         12,741,801         7,495,440            31,807,635         
Depreciation (11,231,011)        -                    (5,000,028)       (16,231,039)        (9,235,969)          -                    (5,000,028)           (14,235,997)        
Other income 146,220              -                    -                 146,220              397,678              -                    -                     397,678              

Net revenue 4,481,741           19,609,704         2,495,412        26,586,857         2,732,103           12,741,801         2,495,412            17,969,316         

Reversal / (Provision) for doubtful receivables -                    -                    -                 -                    -                    3,167,273           -                     3,167,273           

Reportable segment profit 4,481,741           19,609,704         2,495,412        26,586,857         2,732,103           15,909,074         2,495,412            21,136,589         

Reportable segment assets 10,808,374         69,305,354         42,083,494      122,197,222        18,737,610         68,992,141         47,083,522          134,813,273        

Reportable segment liabilities 3,827,150           700,000              -                 4,527,150           6,328,911           700,000              -                     7,028,911           

Additions / (deletions) to 
non-current assets 6,977,200           (30,133,304)        -                 (23,156,104)        7,539,600           (24,812,375)        -                     (17,272,775)        

--------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------

An operating segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The management has determined
the operating segments based on the information that is presented to the Chief Executive Officer (Chief Operating Decision Maker) for allocation of resources and assessments of performance. Based on internal
management reporting structure, the Modaraba is organized into following three major operating segments:

No operating segments have been aggregated to or form the above reportable operating segments. Other activities of the Modaraba did not meet quantitative threshold for reportable segments.

The Chief Executive Officer monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is generally
evaluated based on certain key performance indicators including business volume, gross profit, profit from operations, reduction in operating cost and free cash flows. There were no transfers between operating segments
during the year (2023: Nil). 

The segment information for the reportable segments for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows:

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23



2024 2023
Rupees Rupees 

Revenues
Total revenues for reportable segments 42,671,676           31,807,635           
Other revenues 9,428,101             7,675,939             
Modaraba's revenues 52,099,777           39,483,574           

Profit
Total profit for reportable segments 26,586,857           21,136,589           
Other income 9,281,881             4,110,988             
Operating expenses (11,518,822)          (9,912,429)            
Workers' Welfare Fund (490,655)               (306,703)               
Modaraba Management Company's fee (2,434,992)            (1,533,515)            

21,424,269           13,494,930           

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 122,197,222         134,813,273         
Corporate assets unallocated:

Cash and bank balances 106,248,945         82,104,089           
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 6,788,050             2,469,641             
Advance income tax 2,536,504             1,861,395             
Long term deposits 20,500                  20,500                  
Short term investments 1,918,105             1,306,793             
Deferred tax asset 2,027,989             -                       
Fixed assets under own use 79,162                  238,699                

119,619,255         88,001,117           
Total assets as per the statement of financial position 241,816,477         222,814,390         

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 4,527,150             7,028,911             
Corporate liabilities unallocated:

Unclaimed dividend 10,834,598           10,834,598           
Income tax payable 11,140,150           2,942,382             
Deferred tax liability -                       361,132                
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 4,654,635             2,854,911             

Total liabilities as per the statement of financial position 31,156,533           24,021,934           

-

-

-

-

32.3

Note 33
Provident Fund Related Disclosures

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees 

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

Size of the fund                 401,820                 464,544 
Percentage of investments made 100.00% 100.00%
Cost of investments made                 401,820                 464,544 

Investment
 Investment as a 

% of Size of 
funds 

Investment
 Investment as a 

% of Size of 
funds 

 Rupees  Rupees 

Cash at bank 401,820                100.00%                 464,544 100.00%

Reconciliation of reportable segments revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities is as follows:

The Modaraba operates a recognized provident fund for its permanent employees wherein equal monthly contributions are made by the
Modaraba and employees into the fund @ 10% of the basic salary. Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plan is recognized as an
expense in the profit and loss. The following is information of the fund as on June 30,:

Certain liabilities, assets, other income and other operating charges of the Modaraba cannot be allocated to a specific segment.
Accordingly, these amounts have been classified as unallocated.

There are no differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' profits or losses, assets and liabilities with the
Modaraba's profits or losses, assets and liabilities.

There are no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss.

There are no asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.

All non-current assets of the Modaraba are located in Pakistan as at the reporting date.

Break-up of investment in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund are as follows:

2024 2023

Investments out of the funds of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017
and the rules formulated for this purpose.



Note 34
Shariah Screening Disclosures by Company Listed on Islamic Index

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances 6 106,248,945         82,104,089           
Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances 9,217,038             3,889,600             
Revenue earned from a shariah compliant business segment 35,176,236           24,312,195           
Gain / loss or dividend earned from shariah compliant investments 3,749                   262                      
Short term investments 7 1,918,105             1,306,793             
Relationship with shariah compliant financial institutes:

- Bank balances - deposits with banks 6 Meezan Bank Meezan Bank 
Limited Limited

MCB Islamic Bank MCB Islamic Bank
Limited Limited

Emaan Islamic Emaan Islamic
Banking Banking

The Bank of Punjab The Bank of Punjab

- Short term investments First Punjab First Punjab 
Modaraba Modaraba

Note 35
Number of Employees

2024 2023
Numbers Numbers

Number of employees as at June 30, 6 9
Average number of employees during the year 8 9

Note 36
Date of Authorization for Issue

Note 37
General

Nature From To 2023
Rupees

Statement of profit or loss

Classification of levy Taxation Levy / final taxation                        (39)
(Note 25) (Face of statement of profit and loss)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER                         DIRECTOR                              DIRECTOR                            CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison. Following re-arrangements have
been made in these financial statements that does not have any impact on the statement of financial position and profitability of the
Modaraba.

These financial statements were approved and authorized by the Board of Directors of IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited (the
Management Company) for issuance on November 11, 2024



Categories of Certificate Holders Folios Physical CDC Share held Percentage
Directors, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Children 2 -            1,801,048            1,801,048            8.30          
Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties 1 -            2,170,905            2,170,905            10.01        
NIT & ICP 1 -            1,078,774            1,078,774            4.97          
Banks, DFIs, NBFCs 5 9,354         801                     10,155                0.05          
Insurance Companies 2 1,200         509,990              511,190              2.36          
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 -            70                       70                       -
General Public (Local) 1158 927,249     6,799,024            7,726,273            35.63        
General Public (Foreigner) 1 -            331                     331                     -           
Other Companies (Local) 14 39,494       8,349,260            8,388,754            38.68        

1185 977,297    20,710,203        21,687,500        100.00     

Shareholders More Than 10.00% Folios Physical CDC Share held Percentage
Dosslanis Securities (Private) Limited 1 0 4,995,764            4,995,764            23.04
University of Management & Technology 1 0 3,070,000            3,070,000            14.16
IBL Modaraba Management (Private) Limited 1 0 2,170,905            2,170,905            10.01

CATEGORIES OF CERTIFICATE HOLDERS
AS ON JUNE 30, 2024



No. of 
Shareholders

Total Shares 
held

From To
423 1 100 15,200              
280 101 500 75,586              
181 501 1,000 130,578            
218 1,001 5,000 479,588            
29 5,001 10,000 214,608            
13 10,001 15,000 173,287            
5 15,001 20,000 95,500              
3 20,001 25,000 70,500              
1 25,001 30,000 27,500              
2 30,001 35,000 64,063              
2 45,001 50,000 97,500              
2 50,001 55,000 103,087            
1 55,001 60,000 57,500              
1 60,001 65,000 61,000              
1 80,001 85,000 82,000              
1 85,001 90,000 88,000              
1 90,001 95,000 92,700              
1 125,001 130,000 129,500            
2 130,001 135,000 265,441            
1 145,001 150,000 145,500            
1 185,001 190,000 188,000            
1 240,001 245,000 240,068            
1 280,001 285,000 280,507            
1 310,001 315,000 313,500            
1 320,001 325,000 323,000            
1 375,001 380,000 376,978            
1 405,001 410,000 409,000            
1 500,001 505,000 502,737            
1 505,001 510,000 509,990            
1 575,001 580,000 578,500            
1 710,001 715,000 712,035            
1 1,075,001 1,080,000 1,078,774         
1 1,420,001 1,425,000 1,424,070         
1 2,045,001 2,050,000 2,045,034         
1 2,170,001 2,175,000 2,170,905         
1 3,065,001 3,070,000 3,070,000         
1 4,995,001 5,000,000 4,995,764         

1,185               21,687,500     

Shareholding 

PATTERN OF CERFICATES HOLDERS 
AS ON JUNE 30, 2024
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